
Present: 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council 
Special Meeting 

May 20, 2014 

Sandra Larson, Brittany Boothe, Thomas Cotter, Victoria Hedenstrom, and Thomas Laing 

Others: Ric Ingham, City Administrator; Kay Bark, Community Development Director; Kyle Schauer, Public 
Works Director; Darci Henneman, Assistant City Recorder, Tim Brooker, and Michelle Ossowski, Fern 
Ridge Review 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Sandra Larson called the special meeting of the Veneta City Council to order at 6:01 p.m. 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to approve the consent agenda as presented. 

Thomas Laing seconded the motion. 
VOTE: Brittany Boothe; Thomas Cotter, aye; Sandra Larson, aye; Victoria Hedenstrom, 

aye; Thomas Laing, aye 

The consent agenda as approved include the Civic Calendar for June, 2014. 

4. STAFF REPORTS 
Schauer said currently the City provides bulk water to customers from a fire hydrant in the Public Works 
Yard on Broadway which has been fitted with a meter and backflow device. He said on average the City 
invoices 20 to 25 customers a month and many more during the summer months. He said because the 
location is in the public works yard, customers can only get water Monday through Friday, 7:30 am to 
4:00 pm. He said the public works department would like to move the bulk water station to Cornerstone 
Drive in order to alleviate traffic and wear at the public works yard. He said this move will allow 
customers to purchase water 24 hours a day; 7 days a week. Schauer said Cornerstone appears to be 
the best place to locate the bulk water station for several reasons; the area is well lit, the roadway can 
handle heavy truck traffic, and power is nearby. The bulk water station includes a standalone cabinet 
with a heater so it won't freeze. 

Schauer said the proposed bulk water station operates with a Smartcard system allowing customers to 
pre-load the cards with funds at City Hall to use at the water station. He said the cards can be reloaded 
when the funds run out. He said the proposed system will also eliminate illegal water purchases, 
potential vandalism, and delinquent water accounts because customers can only purchase water with 
funds that have been preloaded on the cards. Schauer said he has narrowed it down to two vendors 
but he's not quite there to make a final decision. He said he took advantage of tonight's special 
meeting to include the purchase in this budget year. He said construction and delivery of the bulk 
station is expected to take six weeks and the manufacturer will assist with the installation. He said bids 
are between $31,000 and $34,000. He said there are additional expenses; installation of a concrete 
slab and to bring electricity to the site. Also, the public works crew will install the required 3 inch of 
water connection to the existing main. Schauer said the project is not expected to exceed $40,000. 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Schauer said originally the fire hydrant on Jack Kelley 
Drive was fitted with a meter for contractors to use for specific events; the Oregon Country Fair, 
construction projects, etc. He said the proposed meter on Cornerstone will provide water to all bulk 
water customers, and with the use of the prepaid card, City staff will no longer be required to invoice 
customers. He said currently we invoice all bulk water customers and track the usage. 
Minutes of the Veneta City Council Special Meeting 
May 20, 2014 

Page 1 



In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Schauer said once the prepaid card system is up 
and running, the hydrant at the public works yard will no longer be available to bulk water customers. 
Special guest may still be authorized to use the hydrant on Jack Kelley Dr. 

Ingham said only one vendor is authorized to use the Jack Kelley Dr. hydrant for only a few days during 
the Country Fair. He said this vendor hauls several thousand gallons of water to the Oregon Country 
Fair which he logs in and is then invoiced. He said once this new prepaid card system is functioning, 
everyone else will be required to go to the Cornerstone location. 

In response to a question from Thomas Laing, Schauer said the proposed prepaid card system at 
Cornerstone will not interfere with any potential development. He said the unit is about 10 to 12 ft. long 
and 3 ft. wide. He said it's a very easy system to use for customers as well as City staff. 

In response to a question from Thomas Cotter, Schauer said the system should pay for itself eventually. 
He said in a typical winter month the City sells 20,000 to 70,000 gallons of bulk water at the same rate 
as commercial water customers. He suggested when we get close to installation bulk water rates will 
be established. 

In response to a question from Brittany Boothe, Schauer said the proposed system is very new and it 
shouldn't need to be updated for quite some time. 

In response to questions from Victoria Hedenstrom, Schauer said over the years, we've had a few 
delinquent accounts but it's not bad. He said he foresees bulk water sales increasing with this system. 
He said Eugene has the same water station on First St. 

Ingham said if someone was caught trying to steal water, they would be prosecuted to the fullest extent 
of the law. He said if he felt the City was losing thousands of gallons of water a month and we weren't 
being compensated for it, the system would have changed a long time ago. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Schauer said currently the public works hydrant is used 
by all bulk water customers, including contractors or vendors that need large amounts of water. He said 
he would like to continue allowing the Oregon Country Fair vendor to use the Jack Kelley Dr. location so 
the Cornerstone location is available for all other customers. Schauer said it may take him 15 to 20 
minutes to fill his truck which he fills several times a day during the Fair. Schauer said the new system 
will have a small and large hose depending on the customer's water needs. 

Schauer said Cornerstone is an industrial street with plenty of width so vehicles won't block traffic, 
lighting is good and it's an area that gets enough traffic so if anything is going on, people will see it. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to authorize the City Administrator to enter into a 
purchase agreement with the selected bidder to purchase a bulk water station 
when the bidding is complete- not to exceed amount $34,000. Brittany Boothe 
seconded the motion which passed with a vote of 5-0. 

a) Community Development Director ......................................................................... Kay Bork 
1) Backyard Chickens 

i. Agenda Item Summary 
Bork said in order for the City Council to consider establishing a backyard chicken permit fee and 
permit renewal fee of $25, Resolution No. 1144 would amend the attachment to the original 
Resolution No. 989 that established land use fees. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said she recently met with friends from Minnesota where they pay $200 per 
chicken to own chickens in their city. She said since the last meeting, she has heard from many 
residents that feel chickens belong in the country and not in the city. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council Special Meeting Page 2 
May 20, 2014 



Brittany Boothe said she's not concerned with the dollar amount over a year's time period but it 
seems as though the intent is to find a way to recoup the cost of staffs' time dealing with chickens. 
She said she doesn't understand the logic to create a permit structure that is so involved. She 
said she's not persuaded by a comparison of a city that charges a lot verses a city that has no 
fee. She said that's not the point. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said if we going to put these rules out she felt a permit is necessary. 

Mayor Larson agreed with Brittany Boothe. She said she can see having a permit because it's 
establishes rules but she doesn't feel it should come with a fee. She said $25 is not a lot of 
money, and suggested the issue be reviewed in three years. 

Thomas Laing said he was comfortable with a $25 permit fee. 

In response to a question from Tim Brooker, Thomas Cotter said residents not living in a rural 
residential zone, who currently have chickens, will also be required to get a permit. He said 
because we are complaint driven, if a complaint comes in, staff will act accordingly. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Bork said everyone who participated in public 
comment sessions at any of the Council and Planning Commission meetings will be contacted 
and sent a copy of the adopted provisions. She said the adopted provisions will also be published 
in the City newsletter and in the Fern Ridge Review. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said she's also heard from residents that the allowed lots size is too large 
and it should be one chicken per 500 sq. ft. 

Ingham said if that were the case, residents could have three times the allotted chickens. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said it seems as though the most vocal residents are the ones that want the 
change. She said for every resident that came to a meeting wanting chickens there are just as 
many out there that don't want chickens. She said she thinks it's important to consider those 
residents even if they weren't here. 

In response to a question from Tim Brooker, Mayor Larson said the ordinance has been written 
and passed. 

In response to a question from Brittany Boothe, Thomas Cotter said because the zoning for 
residents with one acre or larger parcels, can already have chickens. He said the Council 
changed the land ordinance to allow chickens in residential areas where they were not allowed 
before and because we were doing that change, he felt we should try to sustain it with a fee. He 
said the new fee shouldn't apply to residents in zones that already allow chickens. He said we 
can't now say they need to pay for something that has always been legal and free. 

Brittany Boothe said the fee would hopefully recover costs of an influx of chickens in the City 
because it's now allowed. She said maybe no one has complained about chickens on an acre or 
more. She said it just seems that they should be required to pay the fee as well. 

Thomas Cotter said he's not sure what she's asking. He said we were dealing with a permitted 
land issue change, so now do you want to change another land ordinance. 

Brittany Boothe said she doesn't want to impose a fee on anyone but now that the City is allowing 
. chickens on smaller lots, if we impose a fee, it should be the same for everyone. 

Bork said the Planning Commission talked about imposing a chicken fee for rural residential 
Minutes of the Veneta City Council Special Meeting 
May 20, 2014 

Page3 



properties but because so many other livestock animals are allowed, they didn't want to single out 
chickens. 

Brittany Boothe said it illustrates an interesting point in the City, there's such a mix of property 
types in Veneta. She said she grew up in Eugene and she always thought of Veneta as the 
country. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said she lives in a very tight residential subdivision and it's difficult to realize 
that she lives in a rural community based on where she lives. She said there's probably a lot of 
people out there that don't want chickens. 

Mayor Larson said the Council did in fact pass the ordinance and chickens are allowed on smaller 
lots within City limits. She said now the Council needs to decide whether or not we will charge a 
permit and if so, if that fee will be $25. She said we've more or less agreed to do that but we 
need to make it official, realizing that this is experimental and it would be easy to change. 

In response to a question from Tim Brooker, Thomas Cotter said the point was that the people 
with large tracts of land are allowed to have chickens. He said that invalidates the complaint that 
we should charge everyone regardless of their zoning. He said now we're saying its okay for 
residents who don't have large tracts of land to have chickens. 

Ingham said the ordinance was written that the Council may impose a fee. 

ii. Consideration of Resolution 1144- A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 989 TO ADD A 
BACKYARD CHICKEN PERMIT FEE 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to adopt Resolution No. 1144, a Resolution 
amending Resolution No. 989 to add a backyard chicken permit fee. 
Thomas Laing seconded the motion. 

iii. Public Comment 
Tim Brooker said he doesn't think a fee is appropriate. He said if there are enforcement issues 
that require additional funding, after the first year, the resolution could be amended to include a 
fee. 

In response to a question from Michelle Ossowski, Thomas Cotter said the $25 fee is for a three 
year backyard chicken permit itself, providing residents have the adequate yard space. 

MOTION: VOTE OF 4 TO 1. 

Brittany Boothe said with regard to backyard chickens, now we have a structure in place so if there 
are problems, there is a quick and easy way to address them. 

5. REQUEST FOR COMMUNITY DONATION 
a) Elmira High School Graduation Night 
b) Elmira Booster Club - Country Classic Car Show 
c) Oregon Wrestling Association 

Ingham reviewed the three requests with the Council. These topics were discussed all together and not 
individually. 

Ingham said over the last 30 days we had three separate requests come in. He said the Elmira High 
School graduation night committee made a generic request a few months back and it was disregarded 
because it wasn't addressed to the City Council. He said usually a member of the committee and 
students attend a Council meeting and make the request in person. 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council Special Meeting Page 4 
May 20, 2014 



Babits reviewed what the Council has done in the past with regard to the Grad Night Committee and the 
Booster Club and staff provided some donation suggestions. 

In response to a question from Mayor Larson, Ingham said we can pull funds from the Zumwalt fund. 
He said out of the $5000 budgeted there's $2900 remaining and only five or six weeks remaining in this 
fiscal year. He said there's $316 remaining in the General fund and the request from the Booster Club 
is eligible for Rural Tourism Marketing Program funds. He said also the sponsorship request from 
Danielle McCiennen could come from the Zumwalt fund as well. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Ingham said the Booster Club car show is held at 
Fern Ridge Middle School in Elmira. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said she has a difficult time with the City contributing so much money to the 
schools. She agrees the grad night is important but the Booster Club car show doesn't impact the City. 
She said with the three requests for funds coming from Elmira she wonders when it will end. If Amy 
Kepler came to the City requesting funding for her music program would we be willing to fund it? She 
said is the City open to any organization from the high school requesting money? When do we draw 
the line? 

Ingham said Rural Tourism Marketing Program (RTMP) funds are provided to the City from Lane 
County transient room taxes. He said there's specific criteria on how we can spend those funds. He 
said one criteria is that any funds spent need to attract tourist to the area. He said we get very few 
requests that RTMP funds can be applied to but the Elmira Booster Club car show is one. He said 
even though it's in Elmira, it will draw people to our community to spend money, have lunch, grocery 
shop, and purchase gasoline. He said we have limitations on how those funds can be spent but the 
Booster Club event is an eligible event. 

Mayor Larson said the Zumwalt fund is mainly earmarked to provide funds for all youth programs. 

Thomas Cotter said every Councilor should ask that question. He said the Council has always been 
comfortable donating to the schools because unfortunately, most all the schools are outside Veneta. 
He said we have a good number of students that attend Elmira but also Elmira students work in Veneta 
and they don't have to pay taxes but we need to be the outreach to the Fern Ridge area. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said she doesn't want to be the hand of generosity at the front door and asked 
how does this reflect back on Veneta? She said but the way Ric explained it, it does affect our 
community. 

Thomas Cotter said the City has a good relationship with Elmira Booster Club and Territorial Sports 
program. 

Ingham suggesting when Council members attend conferences like the League of Oregon Cities, ask 
other councilors if they have a community giving fund which most cities have. 

Brittany Boothe said it seems to her the majority of the funding requests that come before the Council 
come from the same types of organizations and she doesn't feel like the City discriminates when it 
comes to granting funding requests. 

Thomas Cotter said we donate to the science program at the middle and high school levels. 

Brittany Boothe said the swimming pool has a cap, and in the scope of a year it doesn't seem like we 
get a lot of requests. 

Ingham said whether its RTMP funds, transit tax dollars or the Zumwalt fund, we're not using our 
Minutes of the Veneta City Council Special Meeting 
May 20, 2014 

Page5 



general funds or property tax funds that should go to law enforcement. 

MOTION: Thomas Cotter made a motion to donate $500 to the Elmira High School 
Graduation night and $50 to the Oregon Wrestling Association in Danielle 
McCiennen's name from the Zumwalt fund and $200 to Elmira Booster Club 
Country Classic Car show from the Rural Tourism Marketing Program fund. 
Thomas Laing seconded the motion which passed with a vote of 5-0. 

Mayor Larson said the City has always had a good relationship with the school district. 

3. OTHER 
Ingham said Councilors will receive a notice about the upcoming Branding open house at 6:30pm on 
June 4th in the upstairs conference room at Lane Fire Authority. He said he hopes to see everyone there. 

Thomas Laing said he cannot make it. 

In response to a question from Victoria Hedenstrom, Ingham said the June gth Council meeting is critical. 
He said approval of the 2014-15 budget will be on the agenda. He said the second meeting in July and 
August is usually cancelled but that's at the discretion of the Mayor. He said we try to hold one meeting 
each month. 

Victoria Hedenstrom said she will be gone the first two weeks of August. 

Ingham said the first August meeting is on the 11th_ 

Victoria Hedenstrom said she will likely be able to make the August 11th meeting. 

Ingham said the election polls close at 8:00 o'clock and volunteers continue to empty the ballot boxes 
until that time. He said after the last pick the collection boxes are locked. 

4. ADJOURN 
Mayor Larson adjourned the Veneta City Council at 7:05 p.m. 

Darci Henneman, Assistant City Recorder 
(Minutes prepared by Dhenneman) 

~~) 

Minutes of the Veneta City Council Special Meeting 
May 20, 2014 

Page6 


